
 

 

10 February 2020 

At the conclusion of the Corporate, Finance, Properties  
and Tenders Committee 

 

Environment Committee 
 



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 

  

Agenda 
  

 

 

1.   Disclosures of Interest 

2.   Climate Emergency Response 

 



 

 

 
 

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for 
Speakers at Council Committees 
As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to Councillors during 
Committee meetings about items on the agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice, Committee meetings are audio visually recorded 
and webcast live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a council or committee meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived for up to 12 months.  

Consent  

By attending a council or committee meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a council or committee meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City. To be clear, unless set 
out in a resolution of council, the City does not endorse or support such statements. 

The City does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals during a Council or 
Committee meeting that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive comments. Such 
statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of legal proceedings and potential 
liability, for which the City takes no responsibility. 

Guidelines  

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, we 
encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Council’s Secretariat on 9265 9310 or emailing 
secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au before 12.00 noon on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your concerns so 
that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two minutes) and 
prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that the 
Committee may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three 
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are representing. 

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a large number of 
speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as City staff and Councillors who are 
required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair 
may reorder agenda items so that those items with speakers can be dealt with first. 

Committee reports are available at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au with printed copies available at Sydney Town Hall 
immediately prior to the meeting. City staff are also available prior to the meeting to assist. 

 

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice and the City of 
Sydney Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to disclose pecuniary interests in any 
matter on the agenda for this meeting. 

Councillors are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

This will include receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

Written disclosures of interest received by the Chief Executive Officer in relation to items for 
consideration at this meeting will be laid on the table. 

1

Item 1.



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

 

Climate Emergency Response 

File No: X018592 

Summary 

At its meeting on 24 June 2019, the City of Sydney Council joined a growing number of 
jurisdictions to declare that climate change poses a serious risk to the people of Sydney, and 
should be treated as a national emergency. 

The Climate Emergency Declaration called on the Australian and NSW Governments to take 
urgent action to meet the Paris Agreement and to establish a just transition authority.   

These are important initiatives, however, more needs to be done. A Climate Emergency 
Response has been drafted for consideration by Council which details further ways the City 
can take action in response to this declaration.  

The Climate Emergency Response includes principles, goals and priorities to reduce the 
impacts and increase the resilience of our communities to climate change. It identifies what 
is already being done and what more could be done under the following headings: 

1. Leading by example. 

2. Deliver climate emergency priorities through planning. 

3. Work with and prepare our communities. 

4. Build momentum and advocate. 

It is intended that Council endorse the Climate Emergency Response as a public document 
to help inform and work with our community on key priorities, and to allow business units 
within Council to determine resource implications and deliver on key new priorities as part of 
the business planning process. 

  

1

Item 2.



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that Council: 

(A) receive and endorse the Climate Emergency Response report; and 

(B) note that Chapter 5 of the July 2019 to December 2019 Environmental Sustainability 
Progress Report (Green Report) contains updated information about climate related 
observations and events which supplements the City's 2015 Adapting for Climate 
Change strategy following a review in 2019. 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Climate Emergency Response - February 2020 

  

2



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

 

Background 

1. At its meeting on 24 June 2019, the City of Sydney Council, joined many other 
jurisdictions around the world and declared that climate change poses a serious risk to 
the people of Sydney, and should be treated as a national emergency.  

2. In October 2019, the biggest parliamentary e-petition in Australian history (over 
400,000 signatures) called for the Australian Government to declare a climate 
emergency. 

3. Reducing emissions and adapting to extreme weather events made worse by long 
term climate change is more important than ever - many areas in Australia are 
experiencing long term drought, extreme heat events and unprecedented bushfires. 

4. The Australian community needs to unite behind a vision of a zero carbon economy 
that provides opportunities for all, including workers who currently rely on fossil fuel 
industries. 

5. The City and other leaders in our local community cannot make the required change 
for Sydney and Australia alone. We need state and national leadership and resources 
appropriate to the task. 

6. Greenhouse gas emissions in the local government area have reduced by 21 per cent 
between 2006 and 2018, in part due to partnerships and programs run by the City to 
empower our communities to reduce their carbon impacts. This is a notable result, 
however, more needs to be done to accelerate the transition to a zero carbon and 
resilient economy. 

7. Under the Paris Agreement, most countries including Australia, have agreed to halt 
warming at well below 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. The 2019 Emissions Gap 
Report by the UNEP shows that at current levels of commitment, temperatures can be 
expected to rise to 3.2°C above pre-industrial levels.  

8. The Australian Department of Environment and Energy report “Australia’s emissions 
projections 2019” estimates that Australia's emissions will be 16 per cent below 2005 
levels by 2030 - well short of Australia's 26-28 per cent target Australia’s greenhouse 
gas emissions (excluding land use and forestry) and have increased from 522 Mt in 
2005 to 551 Mt in 2019. The largest emissions reductions (3 per cent) occurred from 
2012 to 2014 when there was a price on carbon. Since the carbon price was repealed 
emissions have increased by 5 per cent. 

9. Global heating has already caused average global temperatures to be 1°C above pre-
industrial levels, with significant impacts. Global emissions need to reduce by 7.6 per 
cent every year from 2020 to 2030 to limit global warming to 1.5°C. Bureau of 
Meteorology data shows the year 2019 was the hottest on record for Australia, already 
reaching 1.52°C above the long term average. 

  

3



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

 

10. Noting the trends and opportunities available, the City has prepared a draft Climate 
Emergency Response to the June 2019 Climate Emergency Declaration. Key 
elements are listed below. 

(a) Climate Emergency Response principles: 

(i) City actions are at a pace and magnitude commensurate with science-
based climate observations and models to limit global heating to less than 
1.5°C above pre industrial levels. 

(ii) Actions are inclusive and acknowledge the First Peoples of Australia and 
the need for a just transition The City can positively influence others 
through its networks. 

(iii) All City functions, activities and decision-making will address the climate 
emergency. 

(iv) The City can influence others through its networks, functions and activities. 

(v) Staff across the organisation are champions of change 

(vi) Pro-active, timely communication and reporting are essential to influence 
and mobilise action. 

(vii) An empowered community will take positive climate actions and be more 
resilient to future challenges. 

(b) Part 1 - Leading by example: 

(i) Goal 1: Address climate emergency priorities in our major strategies, 
projects, and service delivery. 

(ii) Goal 2: Decarbonise the City’s procurement of products, services and 
assets.  

(iii) Goal 3: Empower staff to act more sustainability and become more 
resilient. 

(iv) Goal 4: Streamline governance processes to facilitate the delivery of 
significant climate action. 

(c) Part 2 - Support climate emergency priorities through planning: 

(i) Goal 5: Use the planning system to deliver on climate emergency priorities. 

(d) Part 3 - Work with and prepare our communities. 

(i) Goal 6: Develop, prioritise and embed our communication of the climate 
emergency. 

(ii) Goal 7: Support the community to take further action to address the climate 
emergency.  

(iii) Goal 8: Help the community access onsite and offsite renewables, 
including 100% Green Power.  

4



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

 

(iv) Goal 9: Substantially increase the number of existing buildings that achieve 
net zero energy use and switch to recycled within ten years. 

(e) Part 4 - Build momentum and advocate. 

(i) Goal 10: Share resources and work collaboratively with other councils.  

(ii) Goal 11: Collaborate with allies to drive change to state and federal 
policies and regulations to transition to a zero-carbon economy, and 
ensure sustainable waste and water policies  

Key Implications 

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 

11. Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to 
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as 
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This report is aligned with the 
following strategic directions and objectives: 

(a) Direction 1 - A Globally Competitive and Innovative City - The City's future 
economy and competitiveness depends on reducing the direct and indirect 
impacts of climate change to human health, businesses and infrastructure. There 
are significant opportunities to grow the economy and improve competitiveness 
through clean business sectors. 

(b) Direction 2 provides a road map for the City to become A Leading Environmental 
Performer - The Climate Emergency Response includes goals to improve energy 
and water efficiency and to reduce carbon emissions. 

(c) Direction 5 - A Lively and Engaging City Centre - The Climate Emergency 
Response includes a priority to increase greenery and reduce urban heat, 
improving amenity which is conducive to street activation and active transport. 

(d) Direction 9 - Sustainable Development, Renewal and Design - Improving the 
environmental performance of buildings through the planning system is a key 
aim of the Climate Emergency Response to reduce energy, emissions and 
running costs; and to improve the thermal comfort to occupants and resilience of 
buildings during extreme weather and related events such as power outages. 

(e) Direction 10 - Implementation through Effective Governance and Partnerships - 
The Climate Emergency Response includes chapters on working with our 
community and advocacy. It also aims to embed climate priorities within City 
business units.  

Organisational Impact 

12. This Climate Emergency Response has been developed with the requirement of no 
new staff, and has instead focussed on where existing resources can be diverted to 
address this priority. Business units will consider organisational impacts of the Climate 
Emergency Response, along with other organisational priorities, during the 2020/21 
budgeting and approval processes.  

5



Environment Committee 10 February 2020 
 

 

Environmental 

13. The Climate Emergency Response includes goals and priorities that, when 
implemented, would make a significant contribution to the City's energy and emissions 
targets. 

Economic 

14. An economic assessment of the Climate Emergency Response has not been 
undertaken, however, multiple reports and organisations (World Economic Forum, 
Report University of Melbourne, Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, Stern 
Review, Garnaut Review) show that the costs and opportunities of transitioning to a 
zero carbon economy are orders of magnitude lower than dealing with the unabated 
impacts of climate change. 

Budget Implications 

15. Business units will consider budget impacts of the Climate Emergency Response, 
along with other organisational priorities, during the 2020/21 budgeting and approval 
processes. 

Critical Dates / Time Frames 

16. A timely response to the Council Climate Emergency declaration in June 2019 is 
required and implications considered as part of business planning and budget 
processes for 2020/21.  

Options 

17. Council may choose not to endorse the Climate Emergency Response. However this 
will mean City staff and external stakeholders will not be aware of key actions and 
priorities following the City's declaration of climate emergency in June 2019 and these 
actions and priorities will not be incorporated into business planning for 2020/21.  

Public Consultation 

18. The Climate Emergency Response incorporates community feedback received during 
Sustainable Sydney 2050 engagement. 

KIM WOODBURY 

Chief Operating Officer 

Chris Derksema, Sustainability Director 

6



Attachment A 

Climate Emergency Response – February 
2020 

 

  

 

7



Climate Emergency 
Response.

Local action for global change. ..

Green Global Connected 8



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Introduction. page 3.

1. Lead by example. page 8.

2. Support climate emergency priorities page 12.  
 through planning.

3. Work with and prepare our communities. page 14. 

4. Build momentum and advocate. page 17.

Resources. page 21. 
 

Contents.

Cover Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

9



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Introduction.

“The science is clear 
that climate change is 
supercharging natural 
disasters and we need 
urgent, coordinated 
and global action now 
more than ever.”.
– Lord Mayor Clover Moore.

About this response.
 
The City of Sydney Council 
declared a climate emergency in 
June 2019, stating that climate 
change poses a serious risk to the 
people of Sydney.

 This declaration followed 
a decade in which the City of 
Sydney took strong and effective 
action in response to climate 
change. As part of our goal to 
be an environmental leader, we 
set science-based targets that 
guided our work to reduce our 
carbon emissions and make our 
operations more resilient to climate-
related hazards. We also see it 
as our responsibility to support 
and empower our communities to 
reduce their carbon impacts, water 
use and waste. 

 This document details our next 
steps. We follow the lead of the City 
of Darebin which is in the northern 
region of Melbourne, Victoria. The 
City of Darebin was the first local 
government in the world to declare 
a climate emergency, and we 
acknowledge and thank them for 
their leadership.

We used Darebin’s Resource for 
Effective Local Government Climate 
Emergency Response: Darebin 
Council’s Climate Emergency 
Journey as the framework for 
developing this document.

Climate emergency 
declaration.
 
When we declared a climate 
emergency, we were not alone. 
Around Australia, 85 councils, 
representing 7.4 million people, 
had declared a climate emergency 
at time of publishing. Our councils 
are among the 1,309 jurisdictions in 
25 countries to take this step..1.

 An e-petition submitted to the 
Australian Parliament in October 
2019 is another example of the 
groundswell of support for action 
on climate change. It called on the 
Australian Government to declare 
a climate emergency. More than 
400,000 people signed the petition, 
making it the biggest parliamentary 
e-petition in Australian history.

 In an emergency, we must all 
act. Our leaders must rise above 
fear-based and party-based politics 
to unite the community and get 
behind a vision of a zero-carbon 
economy.

 We need to help our city adapt 
by increasing its resilience to the 
impacts of our changing climate. 
At the City, we must speed up 
our responses in areas where 
we can have an impact, such as 
by increasing our canopy cover, 
protecting and enhancing our 
biodiversity, and reducing the 
amount of waste we produce.1 According to Climate Emergency 

Declaration and Mobilisation in Action.

page 
3. 10

http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/
http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/
http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/-/media/cityofdarebin/Files/Darebin-Living/CaringfortheEnvironment/EnergyandClimate/ClimateChange/DCCClimateEmergencyCouncilsResource.ashx?la=en
http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/-/media/cityofdarebin/Files/Darebin-Living/CaringfortheEnvironment/EnergyandClimate/ClimateChange/DCCClimateEmergencyCouncilsResource.ashx?la=en
http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/-/media/cityofdarebin/Files/Darebin-Living/CaringfortheEnvironment/EnergyandClimate/ClimateChange/DCCClimateEmergencyCouncilsResource.ashx?la=en
http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/-/media/cityofdarebin/Files/Darebin-Living/CaringfortheEnvironment/EnergyandClimate/ClimateChange/DCCClimateEmergencyCouncilsResource.ashx?la=en
http://www.darebin.vic.gov.au/-/media/cityofdarebin/Files/Darebin-Living/CaringfortheEnvironment/EnergyandClimate/ClimateChange/DCCClimateEmergencyCouncilsResource.ashx?la=en
https://www.cedamia.org/global/
https://www.cedamia.org/global/


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

 Annual greenhouse gas emissions in our local  
area have fallen by 21 per cent since 2006, while  
over the same period there have been 45 per cent 
more residents, 22 per cent more jobs and more than  
50 per cent growth in the economy. This clearly shows 
that energy and emissions have been decoupled  
from growth, but the rate of decline is not enough  
in this climate emergency. We need to find ways  
to move faster. 

 The growing number of workers and residents in 
our local area over the last six years has increased the 
amount of potable water used for drinking and in water-
based cooling systems for buildings. This has made  
it challenging to meet potable water targets.

Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

page 
4. 11



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Climate emergency 
threatens civilisation.
 
Global heating has already caused 
average global temperatures to rise 
1.1°C .2. above pre industrial levels, 
which is having a significant impact 
on the climate. 

 Under the Paris Agreement, 
most countries, including Australia, 
have agreed to halt warming at well 
below 1.5°C above pre-industrial 
levels. However, the United 
Nations Environment Programme’s 
Emissions Gap Report 2019 
shows that at the current levels of 
commitment, temperatures can be 
expected to rise 3.2°C above pre-
industrial levels.

 The world needs to act now. 
We urgently need deep global 
emissions cuts of 7.6 per cent every 
year from 2020 to 2030, if we don’t 
want to miss a crucial moment 
in history to limit global warming 
to 1.5°C. .3. These cuts must be 
combined with activities that lock 
away atmospheric carbon, such as 
avoided deforestation, revegetation 
and sustainable farming practices. 

 Any rise above 2°C will have 
devastating impacts on Australia, 
including:

–  more extreme weather events

–  reduced rainfall 

–  longer, hotter and more frequent 
heatwaves

–  water scarcity

–  more extreme bushfires

–  increased risks to food production

–  reduced biodiversity 

–  inundation of coastal areas.

 We are already seeing the 
effects of global heating. In 2019, 
Australia experienced its warmest 
year on record, with our annual 
national mean temperature 1.52°C 
above average. It was also our 
driest year on record. .4. 

 We experienced devastating 
bushfires in 2019–20 that burnt 
for months, consuming more than 
18.6 million hectares, killing at least 
34 people and an estimated 1.25 
billion animals (potentially driving 
some species to extinction). The 
bushfires damaged or destroyed 
thousands of properties, including 
more than 2,700 homes, as at late 
January 2020. 

 In NSW the Air Quality Index 
(AQI) reached the hazardous 
category (with an AQI greater than 
200) on a total of 115 days .5. .

 Every year that passes without 
action will increase the scale and 
severity of the response Australia 
will need to undertake to mitigate 
the impacts of global heating. 

2 Bureau of Meteorology bom.gov.au/
climate/current/annualaus/#tabs=Global

3 United Nations Environment 
Programme’s Emissions Gap Report 
2019.

4 Bureau of Meteorology: Annual 
climate statement 2019. bom.gov.au/
climate/current/annual/aus/ 

5 NSW Planning, Industry and 
Environment. environment.nsw.gov.au/
topics/air/air-quality-statementp

Photograph: VirtualWolf

page 
5. 12

http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/#tabs=Global
http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/#tabs=Global
https://www.unenvironment.org/resources/emissions-gap-report-2019
https://www.unenvironment.org/resources/emissions-gap-report-2019
http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/
http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/
https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/topics/air/air-quality-statement
https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/topics/air/air-quality-statement


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Principles.
 
We have begun work on developing Sustainable 
Sydney 2050, a vision for our city and community that 
builds on Sustainable Sydney 2030. 

 The forthcoming 2050 vision for the city will include 
climate emergency as a key principle. This is currently 
expressed as: 

 The City of Sydney responds to the climate 
 emergency by taking bold steps to reduce the city’s 
 environmental footprint and promoting 
 transformative change in energy production, 
 resource consumption, water use and climate 
 adaptation in a way that is inclusive and supports  
 a just transition across all communities.

 Aligned to this overarching principle, the principles 
below will inform our work as we act to address the 
climate emergency: 

–  City actions are at a pace and magnitude 
commensurate with science-based climate 
observations and models to limit global heating to 
less than 1.5°C above pre industrial levels

–  Actions are inclusive and acknowledge the First 
Peoples of Australia and the need for a just transition

–  All City functions, activities and decision-making will 
address the climate emergency 

–  The City can influence others through its networks, 
functions and activities

–  Staff across the organisation are champions of 
change

–  Pro-active, timely communication and reporting are 
essential to influence and mobilise action

–  An empowered community will take positive climate 
actions and be more resilient to future challenges

Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

page 
6. 13



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Our response.

14



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

What we are doing.
 
The City is committed to building climate resilience.  
We have taken a strategic approach that includes 
actions in everything from energy efficiency to keeping 
an eye on the future. 

 Our operations have been recognised as carbon 
neutral by the Australian Government’s Climate Active 
program since 2011. And because of our commitment 
to 100 per cent renewable electricity, we will achieve 
our operational targets of reducing emissions by  
44 per cent by 2021 and 70 per cent by 2030, based 
on 2006 levels. 

Steps we have taken and continue to take are: 

Increase energy efficiency and renewable energy:

–  transition our operations to 100 per cent renewable 
electricity by 1 July 2020

–  continue the major properties efficiency project to 
improve energy efficiency programs for our buildings 
and aquatic centres, including lighting, equipment, 
heating and cooling upgrades

–  reduce emissions and reliance on the electricity grid 
through the use of cogeneration and trigeneration  
at Town Hall House and major aquatic facilities

–  installing photovoltaic systems, with more than 
6,000 panels on City buildings producing over 1.7 
megawatts of power, including 1663 solar panels 
and a large battery at Alexandra Canal Depot which 
exports renewable energy, making it carbon positive 

1.  
Lead by 
example.

Photograph: Sapphire Wind Farm

page 
8. 15



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

–  continue the replacement of older 
and inefficient streetlight fittings 
with more energy-efficient LED 
street lights in partnership with 
Ausgrid with 2,000 lights installed 
to date

–  metering, monitoring and 
reporting energy consumption 
and solar generation across our 
buildings, street lighting and 
parks

Increase efficient water use and 
recycled water:

–  continue to investigate and 
implement water efficiency 
improvements across our 
property portfolio, including:

•  a major properties efficiency 
project to improve water 
efficiency across our top 14 
water consumption buildings 
(including commercial 
buildings, all aquatic centres, 
community centres and depots)

•  a water efficient fixture 
upgrade program across these 
buildings, including upgrades 
to taps, toilets, showers and 
urinals

•  rainwater tank upgrades project

•  cooling towers optimisation 
upgrades 

•  tenancy water allocation and a 
‘user pays’ approach

–  continue to improve water 
sustainability across our parks 
portfolio, including:

•  operate the 19 water recycling 
schemes in our parks, 
which harvest stormwater, 
groundwater and/or rainwater 
for irrigation of our local parks 
and sporting fields

•  continue improving our 
irrigation systems and deploy 
new technology as it becomes 
available

•  implement metering and 
monitoring systems

•  investigate further opportunities 
to reuse and recycle alternate 
water sources in our parks.

–  continue to operate our precinct 
scale recycled water scheme 
in Green Square town centre, 
and explore other precinct 
opportunities, such as Greater 
Green Square and a city centre 
water recycling scheme using the 
George Street pipeline.

–  continue to improve water quality 
in our streets by maintaining 
gross pollutant traps (GPTs) and 
implementing water sensitive 
urban design, such as rain 
gardens. 

–  continue to improve water 
metering, monitoring and 
reporting across the City’s parks 
and buildings portfolio.

Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

page 
9. 16



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Enhance our guidelines for 
construction projects:

–  introduce sustainable design 
technical guidelines for projects 
ranging from swimming pools to 
multi-storey commercial projects

–  revise Sydney streets technical 
specifications, which incorporate 
climate change assessment 
recommendations for designing 
and building all civil infrastructure 
across the local area

Introduce strategies to cool our 
buildings and streets:

–  commissioned the Cooling 
Sydney Strategy: Planning for 
Sydney 2050 

–  increase greenery

–  monitor air quality, heat and 
pedestrian movement to optimise 
outcomes when drawing up 
strategies

Reduce the waste we produce 
and enhancing our sustainability 
activities:

–  introduce guidelines for 
sustainable event management 
for City events

–  complete a waste improvement 
trial at five City buildings before 
launching a program

–  reduce fuel use through 
diagnostics technology and a 
plan to replace existing vehicles 
with 19 fully electric vehicles

–  provide sustainability training for 
all staff

–  continue environmental reporting 
through our biannual Green 
Environmental Sustainability 
Progress Report and Carbon 
Disclosure Project CDP – C40 
international reporting

Invest in the future:

–  continue to preference socially 
responsible investments, to 
promote projects that take action 
against climate change, within 
the City’s financial sustainability 
framework 

–  apply the 100 Resilient Cities’ 
assets and risks tool to determine 
the shocks and stresses that will 
have an impact on Sydney in  
the future.

Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

page 
10. 17

https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0014/310073/2017-306818-FINAL-SDTG-Sustainable-Design-Technical-Guideline-COS-Final_V1.3-accessible.PDF
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0014/310073/2017-306818-FINAL-SDTG-Sustainable-Design-Technical-Guideline-COS-Final_V1.3-accessible.PDF
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/development/public-domain-works/da-associated-works/sydney-streets-technical-specifications
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/development/public-domain-works/da-associated-works/sydney-streets-technical-specifications
http://www.lowcarbonlivingcrc.com.au/sites/all/files/publications_file_attachments/sp0012u3_-_cooling_sydney_strategy_final_-_web.pdf
http://www.lowcarbonlivingcrc.com.au/sites/all/files/publications_file_attachments/sp0012u3_-_cooling_sydney_strategy_final_-_web.pdf
http://www.lowcarbonlivingcrc.com.au/sites/all/files/publications_file_attachments/sp0012u3_-_cooling_sydney_strategy_final_-_web.pdf
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/publications-updates/environmental-plans-reports#page-element-dload
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/publications-updates/environmental-plans-reports#page-element-dload
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/publications-updates/environmental-plans-reports#page-element-dload


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

To complement our existing 
commitments, we have set four 
goals and related actions to further 
support our climate emergency 
declaration.

Goal 1: Address climate 
emergency priorities in our 
major strategies, projects and 
service delivery  

–  Assess all new and revised 
strategies to ensure they include 
climate emergency principles, 
building resilience into the 
delivery of services to the 
community. 

–  Develop and implement a net 
zero carbon property strategy for 
City buildings.

–  Further embed environmental 
outcomes into asset management 
plans for buildings, parks, 
stormwater systems and civic 
assets.

–  Provide education, inspiration and 
support to community members, 
across City services and 
programs, to take positive climate 
action and build resilience.

–  Develop and implement a plan to 
support vulnerable communities 
impacted by climate change.

What we need to do.
Goal 2: Decarbonise the City’s 
procurement of products, 
services and assets

–  Develop a framework to assess 
our supply chain for climate 
impacts and take appropriate 
mitigation actions.

–  Create a plan to phase out 
fossil fuels across our portfolio 
as technology improves and 
alternative supplies become 
available.

Goal 3: Empower staff to act 
more sustainably and become 
more resilient

–  Develop a sustainability training 
plan to incorporate into workforce 
planning.

–  Develop a comprehensive and 
ongoing staff engagement 
campaign.

–  Provide staff with resources to 
reduce energy and water use, 
and waste generation

Goal 4: Streamline governance 
processes to support significant 
climate action

–  Improve existing project 
management processes to 
ensure they lead to sustainable 
outcomes.

Photograph: Carolyn Johnstone

page 
11. 18



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

What we are doing.
 
Local government land use planning and development 
controls can affect the environmental performance 
of buildings and their surrounding area. Our local 
planning policies, controls and actions can contribute 
to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and increasing 
resilience over the long term. 

Actions we have completed or are underway:

–  Include clauses in Sydney Local Environment 
Plan 2012 that require new buildings to address 
environmental impacts, including sustainable design. 

–  Include principles in Sydney Development Control 
Plan 2012 for ecologically sustainable development 
(ESD) and controls to reduce environmental impacts; 
for example, a NABERS Energy Commitment 
Agreement for new office buildings and major 
refurbishments. 

2.  
Support climate 
emergency 
priorities through 
planning.

–  Implement higher site-specific NABERS and the NSW 
Government’s BASIX requirements in association with 
changes to planning controls (planning proposals). 

–  Regularly review standard conditions applied to 
development consents  to improve environmental 
outcomes.

 The City’s local strategic planning statement  
to be implemented by March 2020 includes our climate 
emergency declaration and our planning related 
climate change mitigation, adaptation and resilience 
actions. 

 Over the next five years, we will take actions to 
encourage development to increase canopy cover, 
biodiversity and resilience to natural and urban 
hazards, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions, waste 
and potable water consumption. 

 

page 
12. 19

https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/your-say/city-plan-2036-our-draft-plan-for-planning-and-land-use


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

We have set the following goal 
and actions to support our climate 
emergency declaration.

Goal 5: Use the planning system 
to support climate emergency 
priorities   

–  Reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions: implement the 
performance standard pathways 
framework to achieve net zero 
energy buildings in the controls.

–  Maximise onsite renewable 
energy generation – review 
solar panel and battery 
storage controls, to increase 
implementation opportunities.

–  Protect and increase tree canopy 
cover and vegetation across 
public and private land – review, 
implement and monitor targets 
and controls for tree canopy 
cover on private land with the aim 
to increase tree canopy.  

What we need to do.
–  Protect and enhance urban 

bushland and biodiversity, 
in particular locally native 
vegetation – review controls to 
identify biodiversity corridors to 
improve habitat protection and 
connectivity within and beyond 
the city. 

–  Increase resilience to natural and 
urban (including environmental) 
hazards – update floodplain 
management planning controls 
to manage risk and achieve good 
urban design outcomes.

Photograph: Paul Patterson

page 
13. 20



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

3.  
Work with and 
prepare our 
communities.

What we are doing.
 
The City has a strong history of working with our 
community, and government and industry partners, to 
collectively improve our environmental performance. 
Our community plan, environmental strategy and 
sector-specific plans set out clear pathways for 
programs, services and campaigns to build capacity, 
address barriers and challenges, and incentivise 
needed actions and behaviours. 

 We have targeted three sectors (commercial office, 
accommodation and entertainment, and residential 
apartment) in our community. These sectors are 
collectively responsible for close to 80 per cent of the 
city’s carbon emissions and 80 per cent of potable 
water consumption. 

Photograph: Jessica Lindsay

page 
14. 21

https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0007/284749/Environmental-Action-strategy-and-action-plan.pdf


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Our actions include:

–  Provide our Smart Green 
Apartments program to Owners 
Corporations, with action plans 
to reduce energy and water 
consumption and increase 
renewables in strata, building 
more resilient residential precincts 
and communities. 

–  Work with major property owners 
and managers in the commercial 
office sector who are members of 
our Better Buildings Partnership. 
These owners are collectively 
responsible for up to 9 per cent 
of the city’s emissions and can 
influence a further 9 per cent 
through relationships with their 
tenants. 

–  Provide our CitySwitch Green 
Office program to engage with 
tenants within our commercial 
office buildings and support them 
to reduce their carbon emissions 
and environmental impact. 

–  Work with the owners and 
managers in the accommodation 
and entertainment sector who 
are members of our Sustainable 
Destination Partnership. These 
members provide more than 
60 per cent of the city’s hotel 
accommodation space. 

–  Provide grants to incentivise 
actions that improve the 
environmental performance of 
buildings and communities. 
The City has a dedicated 
Environmental Performance 
Grants program that has provided 
more than 240 grants since 2015. 
Visit the City of Sydney data hub 
for examples of our grants. 

Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

page 
15. 22

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/b7ee6f43b9424f1f8e6d73c4d98b0933


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

While our communities have been 
reducing their carbon emissions, 
we need to increase the pace to 
respond to the climate emergency. 
Potable water use in the local 
government area continues to 
increase and is 13 per cent above 
2006 level as at June 2018, during 
which time the city’s population has 
grown by 45 per cent.

 We need to ramp up our 
own actions and those of our 
communities to achieve a mass 
movement of individuals and 
businesses that are rapidly 
decarbonising. The City will model 
excellence and help drive change 
throughout the process.

 The following are goals and 
actions outlining further work we 
will do to support the climate 
emergency declaration.

What we need to do.
Goal 6: Develop, prioritise and 
embed communications about 
the climate emergency    

–  Establish climate emergency 
messaging, communication 
principles and a delivery plan 
as part of the City’s Corporate 
Communications Plan.

–  Include information on how to 
address the key challenges 
identified in the Resilient Sydney 
strategy. This includes using 
the Australian Red Cross’ Get 
Prepared app to increase the 
resilience of our communities.

–  Foster more strategic 
partnerships with allies within 
business, not for profit, health, 
education, and all levels of 
government to amplify the reach 
and impact of our messaging.

Goal 7: Support the community 
to take further action to address 
the climate emergency   

–  Mobilise members of our 
environmental programs and 
other stakeholders to take more 
significant action to decarbonise 

and adapt their operations, and to 
engage with their own customers 
to help empower them to respond 
to the climate emergency.

Goal 8: Help the community 
access onsite and offsite 
renewables, including  
100 per cent GreenPower     

–  Identify and establish further 
partnerships to achieve maximum 
scale. 

–  Communicate and educate 
on options, particularly for 
economically vulnerable 
members of the community. 

Goal 9: Substantially increase 
the number of existing buildings 
that achieve net zero energy use 
and switch to recycled water 
within 10 years

–  Investigate frameworks to require 
progressive decarbonisation of 
existing buildings through energy 
efficiency upgrades and the use 
of renewable energy.

Photograph: Katherine Griffiths Photograph: Jamie Williams

page 
16. 23

https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0013/303700/Resilient-Sydney-A-strategy-for-city-resilience-2018.pdf


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

4.  
Build momentum 
and advocate.

What we are doing.
 
The City has demonstrated the effect of taking 
collective climate action. We must now collaborate 
beyond our boundaries to drive resilience planning and 
enable adaptation across Australia. 

 For example, in response to the bushfire crisis in 
2019–20, the Office of Local Government partnered 
with the City, the Resilient Sydney Office and Local 
Government NSW to provide a disaster recovery 
council resource coordination service to assist affected 
councils. This service, the Local Government Bushfire 
Recovery Support Group, will enable unaffected 
councils to offer assistance, share resources and 
deploy temporary relief staff to councils in need.

 The City is responding to the climate emergency 
by using all levers available to local government. 
However, local government alone cannot deliver the 
transformative change required. State and federal 
government policies, legislation and funding need to 
undergo major changes to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions, manage the transition and adapt to the 
impacts of global heating. 

The City has advocated for change in many areas  
in recent years, including calling for:

–  the Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal 
and the NSW Government to implement progressive 
pricing structures for Sydney Water that reflect the 
value of the resource and enable water-sensitive 
solutions

–  the establishment of a NABERS rating tool for 
apartment buildings, which has since been 
implemented

–  enhanced mandatory disclosure of building 
environmental performance 

–  government agencies to adopt policies to 
procure accommodation and event venues with 
environmental performance ratings. 

Photograph: Jessica Lindsay

page 
17. 24



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

The City will continue to advocate 
for change by creating an evidence 
base, building partnerships and 
contributing to government-led 
inquiries and reviews. We will join 
our allies, including other councils 
declaring a climate emergency, 
to take collective action to reduce 
emissions and accelerate a 
transition to renewables.

 We have set two goals and 
related actions to further support 
the climate emergency declaration. 

Goal 10 – Share resources and 
work collaboratively with other 
councils    

–  Ensure environmental data 
is available to drive local 
government strategic decision 
making across Greater Sydney 
through the Resilient Sydney 
Platform.

What we need to do.
–  Build momentum and collaborate 

with other councils that have 
declared a climate emergency. 

–  Work with Local Government NSW 
to build stronger relationships with 
regional councils to contribute to a 
resilient NSW. 

Goal 11 – Collaborate with allies 
to drive change to state and 
federal policies and regulations 
to transition to a zero carbon 
economy, and ensure 
sustainable waste and water 
policies   

–  Advocate for policies, regulations 
and market mechanisms to 
rapidly transition our nation’s 
energy supply to 100 per cent 
renewable sources. 

–  Advocate for water efficiency and 
alternative supplies to ensure 
reliability in response to changing 
climate conditions.

–  Advocate for improved waste 
management and circular 
economy outcomes.

–  Advocate for an economic 
diversification plan for a zero-
carbon economy, a national 
price on carbon and a national 
emissions target that aligns with 
the Paris Agreement.

–  Advocate for strengthening 
community resilience through 
effectively communicating climate 
risks and ensuring adequate 
funding for community adaptation 
initiatives.

–  Advocate for legislative and 
regulatory change (e.g. building 
codes and planning controls, 
energy regulations, rating tools, 
and disclosure and compliance 
regimes) at all levels of 
government to achieve net zero 
carbon buildings.

–  Advocate for the use of  
recycled water for new buildings, 
particularly in urban renewal 
areas.

Photograph: Noah Dawson Photograph: Katherine Griffiths

page 
18. 25



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

When the Council declared a 
climate emergency, it stated 
that climate change should be 
treated as a national emergency. 
Specifically, the Council called 
on the Australian and NSW 
governments to:

–  take urgent action to meet the 
emissions reduction targets 
contained in the Paris Agreement 
by reintroducing a price on 
carbon

–  establish an appropriately funded 
just transition authority to ensure 
that Australians employed in the 
fossil fuel industry and small-
business owners have viable 
and appropriate opportunities for 
alternative employment.

 The City and other leaders in 
our local community cannot make 
the required changes for Sydney 
and Australia alone. We need 
state and national leadership and 
resources that are appropriate 
to the task. We must provide 
opportunities for everyone, 
including those workers who will be 
affected by ending our reliance on 
the fossil fuel industry.

Photograph: Jack Begbie

page 
19. 26



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

20

Local governments 
are fundamental 
in the climate 
emergency 
response. 
Experience is 
showing that local 
government is 
the best place to 
start government 
commitment to 
climate emergency 
action across  
the world. 
– Framework for Effective Local 
   Government, Darebin Council

27



City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

Resources

City of Darebin Framework for Effective Local Government: Climate 
Emergency Response.

City of Sydney Green Environmental Sustainability Progress Report.

City of Sydney Environmental Action 2016–2021: Strategy and Action Plan.

Adapting for Climate Change: A long-term strategy for the City of Sydney 
City Plan 2036 – Draft City of Sydney Local Strategic Planning Statement.

Cooling Sydney Strategy: Planning for Sydney 2050.

Climate Emergency Declaration and Mobilisation in Action.

IPCC Report Strengthening and Implementing the Global Response.

Bureau of Meteorology.  
bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/#tabs=Global.

Bureau of Meteorology: Annual climate statement 2019.  
bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/.

NSW Planning, Industry and Environment.  
environment.nsw.gov.au/topics/air/air-quality-statement.

United Nations Environment Programme’s Emissions Gap Report 2019.

page 
21. 28

http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwios6njxb7mAhWZSH0KHTe8BocQFjABegQIARAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.darebin.vic.gov.au%2F-%2Fmedia%2Fcityofdarebin%2FFiles%2FDarebin-Living%2FCaringfortheEnvironment%2FEnergyandClimate%2FDCCFramework4ppA4FA1digital.ashx%3Fla%3Den&usg=AOvVaw3mQ916zfGt7y3r0aDZ1nY5
http://www.google.com/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=2&ved=2ahUKEwios6njxb7mAhWZSH0KHTe8BocQFjABegQIARAC&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.darebin.vic.gov.au%2F-%2Fmedia%2Fcityofdarebin%2FFiles%2FDarebin-Living%2FCaringfortheEnvironment%2FEnergyandClimate%2FDCCFramework4ppA4FA1digital.ashx%3Fla%3Den&usg=AOvVaw3mQ916zfGt7y3r0aDZ1nY5
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/publications-updates/environmental-plans-reports
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0007/284749/Environmental-Action-strategy-and-action-plan.pdf
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/your-say/city-plan-2036-our-draft-plan-for-planning-and-land-use
https://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/council/your-say/city-plan-2036-our-draft-plan-for-planning-and-land-use
http://www.lowcarbonlivingcrc.com.au/sites/all/files/publications_file_attachments/sp0012u3_-_cooling_sydney_strategy_final_-_web.pdf
https://www.cedamia.org/global/
https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/sites/2/2019/05/SR15_Chapter4_Low_Res.pdf
http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/#tabs=Global
http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/
http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/current/annual/aus/
https://www.environment.nsw.gov.au/topics/air/air-quality-statement
https://www.unenvironment.org/resources/emissions-gap-report-2019


City of Sydney - Climate Emergency Response - 2020

29


	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Climate Emergency Response
	Attachment A - Climate Emergency Response


